
 
 

 
 
 
Variance requests may be subject to change or alteration upon review of request during preparation of the staff memorandum. Therefore, Sections of 
the Code of Ordinances are subject to change. Changes will be noted during public hearing meeting. 
 
Individuals with disabilities requiring auxiliary aids or services should contact the Meridian Township Board by contacting:  
Assistant Planner Keith Chapman, 5151 Marsh Road, Okemos, MI 48864 or 517.853.4580 - Ten Day Notice is Required.  
Meeting Location: 5151 Marsh Road, Okemos, Ml 48864 Township Hall 
 
 

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 
 
 

AGENDA 
CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN  

ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS MEETING 
February 15, 2023 6:30 pm 

 

 

1. CALL MEETING TO ORDER     
2. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 
3. CORRECTIONS, APPROVAL AND RATIFICATION OF MINUTES 

A.  December 21, 2022 
 

4. COMMUNICATIONS 
5. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
6. NEW BUSINESS 

 
A. ZBA CASE NO. 23-02 (1236 Jolly), Elizabeth A. Seagull, 1236 Jolly Road, Okemos, MI 

48864 
 
DESCRIPTION: 1236 Jolly Road 
TAX PARCEL:   35-451-011 
ZONING DISTRICT:  RR (Rural Residential) 
                
The variance requested is to allow for a composite bridge structure to be constructed within 
the 20-foot wetland setback located at 1236 Jolly Road. 

 
7. OTHER BUSINESS 

A. Election of 2023 Officers 
 

8. PUBLIC REMARKS 
9. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS 
10. ADJOURNMENT 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN 
ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS REGULAR MEETING MINUTES *DRAFT* 
5151 MARSH ROAD, OKEMOS, Ml 48864-1198 
(517) 853-4000 
WEDNESDAY, DECEMBER 21ST, 2022 
REGULAR TELEVISED MEETING 
 

PRESENT:  Chair Mansour, Vice-Chair Field-Foster, Members Deschaine (6:39 pm), Koenig 

ABSENT:    Member Premoe 
STAFF:        Assistant Planner Chapman 
 
 
1. CALL MEETING TO ORDER  

Chair Mansour called the meeting to order at 6:31 p.m.  
 
Chair Mansour called the roll. Members Premoe and Deschaine are absent, all others present. 

 
2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Vice-Chair Field-Foster moved to approve the agenda as presented. Seconded by Member 
Koenig.  
 
ROLE CALL VOTE: YEAS: Members Koenig, Vice-Chair Field-Foster, Chair Mansour  
 

NAYS: None 
 

Motion carried:   3-0 
 

3. CORRECTIONS, APPROVAL & RATIFICATION OF MINUTES  
A. October 19, 2022 Meeting Minutes 

 
Chair Mansour moved to approve the minutes of October 19, 2022. Seconded by Vice-Chair 
Field-Foster. 
 
ROLE CALL VOTE: YEAS: Members Koenig, Vice-Chair Field-Foster, Chair Mansour  
 

NAYS: None 
 

Motion carried:   3-0 
 
4. COMMUNICATIONS  

A. Brian Winn, 1479 Belvedere RE: ZBA #22-12-21-1 
 
5. UNFINISHED BUSINESS-NONE 
 
6. NEW BUSINESS 

 

A. ZBA CASE NO. 22-12-21-1 (Newman Equity II, LLC), 2502 Lake Lansing Road, Suite C, 
Lansing, MI 48912 



 
DESCRIPTION: Vacant Lots between Central Park Drive and Powell Road, 

North of Grand River Ave. 
TAX PARCEL:   22-252-002, 22-276-009, & 22-252-005 
ZONING DISTRICT:  RD (Multiple Family, 8 d/u per acre) 
                
The variance requested is to construct a new road in the wetland setback on three vacant 
parcels (Tax I.D. # 22-252-002, 22-276-009, 22-252-005) between Central Park Drive and 
Powell Road. 
 
Assistant Planner Chapman outlined the case for discussion. 
 
DTN Representative Joe Locricchio further outlined the case for discussion. 
 
Member Deschaine arrived at 6:39 pm. 
 
Josh Burkitt, 4739 Powell Rd., Okemos, MI spoke about protecting wetlands and not 
overdeveloping Powell Rd. 
 
Vice-Chair Field-Foster asked if there have been any conversation with the state about any 
possible wetland impact this project may have. 
 
Assistant Planner Chapman replied because there is no direct impact to wetlands and because 
of that the state is not involved. 
 
Vice-Chair Field-Foster asked how water or flooding on the road will be handled.  
 
DTN Representative Matt Diffin, 24353 Tara Dr., South Lyon, MI replied water will be retained 
in a pond on site where it will flow into a drain detention area. 
 
Member Deschaine noted the township board has worked with the developers to preserve 
greenspace and lessen any impact to wetlands. 
 
Chair Mansour asked the developers what would happen if they were not granted the ability 
to create the new road they have requested. 
 
Applicant Raji Uppal, Clark Rd., Dewitt, MI explained how the current plan came into place. 
 
Mr. Diffin stated if the variance is not granted the developer will need to acquire a wetland 
permit. He further stated a pump station would need to be installed for sanitary sewage, and 
storm sewage will need to flow to Central Park Dr. 
 
Chair Mansour read review criteria one from Section 86-221 of the Code of Ordinances 
which states unique circumstances exist that are peculiar to the land or structure, that are 
not applicable to other land or structures in the same zoning district and these unique 
circumstances are not self-created. 
 
Chair Mansour stated Criteria one has been met. 
 



Chair Mansour read review criteria two which states strict interpretation and enforcement 
of the literal terms and provisions of this chapter would result in practical difficulties that 
would prevent the owner from using the property for a permitted purpose. 

 
Chair Mansour stated criteria two has been met. 
 
Chair Mansour read review criteria three which states Granting the variance is the minimum 
action necessary which would carry out the spirit of this Zoning Ordinance, secure public 
safety, and provide substantial justice. 

 
Chair Mansour stated criteria three has been met. 
 
Chair Mansour read review criteria four which states granting the variance will not 
adversely affect adjacent land or the essential character in the vicinity of the property. 
 
Chair Mansour stated Criteria four has been met. 
 
Chair Mansour read review criteria five which states Granting the variance will be generally 
consistent with public interest and the purposes and intent of this chapter. 
 
Chair Mansour stated criteria five has been met. 
 
Vice-Chair Field-Foster noted that part of the responsibility of the developer is the safety of 
their residents. Without permission to construct this new road public safety vehicles would 
not have easy access to all units in the development creating a practical difficulty to the 
developer and denying secure public safety. 
 
Member Deschaine noted the new road would create connectivity for the residents of this 
development. 
 

Vice-Chair Field-Foster moved to approve ZBA CASE NO. 22-12-21-1 (Newman Equity II, LLC), 
variance to construct a new road in the wetland setback on three vacant parcels (Tax I.D. # 
22-252-002, 22-276-009, 22-252-005) between Central Park Drive and Powell Road. 
Seconded by Member Koenig. 

 
ROLE CALL VOTE: YEAS: Members Koenig, Vice-Chair Field-Foster, Member Deschaine, Chair 

_________Mansour  
 

NAYS: None 
 

Motion carried:   4-0 
  
7. OTHER BUSINESS  

A. 2023 Meeting Calendar 

 

Chair Mansour reviewed the 2023 Zoning Board of Appeals Calendar. 

ROLE CALL VOTE: YEAS: Members Koenig, Vice-Chair Field-Foster, Member Deschaine, Chair 
_________Mansour  

 



NAYS: None 
 

Motion carried:   4-0 
 

B. 2022 Meridian Township Master Plan Update 

 
Chair Mansour outlined the 2022 Meridian Township Master Plan Update. 
 
Member Koenig thanked staff and Member Premoe for sending the Notice of Intent to the 
Regional Planning Agency. 
  

8. PUBLIC REMARKS 
 

Chair Mansour opened the floor for public remarks at 7:17 pm. 
 

NONE  
 

Chair Mansour closed public remarks at 7:17 pm. 
 
9. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS 

 
Chair Mansour 

• Wished Member Premoe well in his retirement 
• Donations for Knob Hill residents impacted by the recent fire may donate through 

Meridian cares 
 
10.  ADJOURNMENT 
 
The Zoning Board of Appeals Adjourned at 7:20 pm. 



VARIANCE APPLICATION SUPPLEMENT 
 
 
A variance will be granted, if the following Review Criteria are met: 
 

(1) Unique circumstances exist that are peculiar to the land or structure, that are not 
applicable to other land or structures in the same zoning district and these unique 
circumstances are not self-created. 
 

(2) Strict interpretation and enforcement of the literal terms and provisions of this 
chapter would result in practical difficulties that would prevent the owner from using 
the property for a permitted purpose.  

 
(3) Granting the variance is the minimum action necessary which would carry out the 

spirit of this zoning ordinance, secure public safety, and provide substantial justice. 
 

(4) Granting the variance will not adversely affect adjacent land or the essential character 
in the vicinity of the property. 

 
(5) Granting the variance will be generally consistent with public interest and the 

purposes and intent of this chapter. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

To:  Zoning Board of Appeals 

From:  Keith Chapman, Assistant Planner 

Date:  February 7, 2022 

Re:  ZBA Case No. #23-02 (1236 Jolly) 

 

ZBA CASE NO.:  23-02 (1236 Jolly), Elizabeth A. Seagull, 1236 Jolly Road, Okemos, MI 
48864  

LOCATION:  1236 Jolly Road 
PARCEL ID:  35-451-011 
ZONING DISTRICT: RR (Rural Residential) 
 
The applicant is requesting a variance from the following section of the Code of Ordinances:  
 
• Section 86-471(c)(1), to minimize erosion, stabilize streambanks and wetland edges, protect 

water quality, and preserve fish and wildlife habitat, a natural vegetation strip shall be 

maintained from the edge of a water feature as follows: Wetlands regulated by the Township, 

the state, or by federal law; 20 feet. 

Elizabeth A. Seagull, the applicant, has requested a variance to allow for a composite bridge 
structure to be constructed within the wetland setback located at 1236 Jolly Road. The applicant is 
proposing to replace an existing wooden bridge with a 5’ by 32’-4” structure with composite 
materials. In 2020, a building permit (PB20-0751) was approved for deck work and a boardwalk 
construction. The approximate 1.76-acre site is zoned RR (Rural Residential). 
 
The wetland on site is approximately a half-acre in size and is part of the Ponderosa Branch Drain. 
The Zoning Ordinance specifies activities that are prohibited within the 20-foot wetland setback. 
Structures are not permitted in the 20-foot wetland setback. Within the 20-foot wetland setback 
trees, shrubs, and ground cover may be selectively pruned or removed to provide reasonable 
private access or views to water features, to remove potentially hazardous or nuisance exotic 
vegetation, and to improve or protect wildlife habitat. Such pruning and removal activities are 
subject to the following: 1. No more than 10% of the length of the strip shall be clear cut or mowed 
to the depth of the strip. 2. Pathways accessing water features shall not exceed 10 feet in width. 3. 
A live root system shall be maintained to provide for streambank stabilization and erosion control.  
 
At the closest point the structure would be located 17’ from the wetland boundary, encroaching 3’ 
into the 20-foot wetland setback.  The applicant is requesting a 3’ variance for the structure within 
the 20-foot wetland setback.  
 
 

Attachments 

1. Variance application 
2. Site location map 

































 

 

To:  Zoning Board of Appeals  
 
From:  Keith Chapman, Assistant Planner 
 
Date:  February 9, 2023 
 
Re: Election of Chair and Vice-Chair 
 
 
The Zoning Board of Appeals rules of procedure require that at the first regular meeting each 
calendar year the Board must select from its members a Chair and Vice-Chair.  In accordance with 
Section 86-62(c)(5) of the Code of Ordinances, an elected official of the Township cannot serve as 
chair or vice-chair of the Zoning Board of Appeals.  The general duties of each position are as 
follows: 
 
Chair: The chair shall preside at all meetings, authorize calls for special meetings, and perform 
such other duties as may be specified by the Zoning Board of Appeals. 
 
Vice-Chair: The vice-chair shall act in the capacity of the chair in the chair’s absence.  In the event 
the office of the chair becomes vacant, the vice-chair shall succeed to this office for the unexpired 
term. 
 
At the meeting on February 15, 2023 the current chair will request nominations for the officer 
positions listed above.  Once nominations are made the Zoning Board of Appeals will vote on each 
office.  The Board member receiving the most votes will serve in that position.  The elected officer 
will begin serving immediately after being selected and will remain in office for the remainder of 
the year.  Current officers may be re-elected. 
 
 
 


	February 15, 2023 Zoning Board of Appeals Meeting Agenda
	December 21 2022 ZBA Draft Minutes
	VARIANCE APPLICATION SUPPLEMENT-review criteria only 2022
	ZBA 23-02 staff report
	Application
	Plans
	February 15, 2023 Zoning Board of Appeals Meeting Agenda.pdf
	6. NEW BUSINESS
	A. ZBA CASE NO. 23-02 (1236 Jolly), Elizabeth A. Seagull, 1236 Jolly Road, Okemos, MI 48864
	The variance requested is to allow for a composite bridge structure to be constructed within the 20-foot wetland setback located at 1236 Jolly Road.




